
A BCD & Co 
Chartered Accountants 

New# 81, Old # 61 I Peters Road I Royapettah I Chennai - 600 014.TN I India I Tel: +91 44 4858 1486 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of Flaunt Solar Energy Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Flaunt Solar Energy Private Limited ( .. the 
Company .. ) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 3 1. 2023 and the Statement of Profit and 
Loss for the year ended, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income. the Cash Flow 
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equit) for the year then ended. and notes to the Ind J\S 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accord ing to the t::xplanations given to us. the 
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 
2013 ( .. the Act'") in the manner so requi red and give a true and fair view in confom1ity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31'1 2023. its Loss including other comprehensive income, its cash nows and the changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs), as speci fi ecl under section 143( I 0) of the Act. Our responsibi lities under those Standards are 
further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements' 
section of our report. We arc independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions o f the Act and the Rules thereunder. 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind J\S financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our professional j udgment. were of most significance in our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole. and in forming our opinion 
thereon. and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Reporting of Key audit matters as per SA 701 is not applicable to the company as it is an unlisted 
company. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other · ro,,..,,......_ ..... 
comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the Ind 
statements and our aud itor's report thereon. 
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Our opin ion on the lnci AS fi nancia l statements docs not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Jnd AS financial statements. our responsibility is ro read the other 
informat ion and, in doing so. consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with 

the fi nancial statements. or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 10 be materially 
misstated. If. based on the work we have performed. ,, e conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 10 report in this regard. 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw a11enIion to Note 30 of the financial statements. which describes the effect of following: 
(Rs /11 '000s) 

As per the PPA. the company invoiced BESCOM m Rs. 8.4/- per unit but received Rs. 4.36/- citing a 
project delay. The company has appealed 10 KERC for release of bc1 l:mce -l.04 per unit for which K ERC 
has ruled the appeal in BESCOM favour. The company appealed to Karnataka High Court. then 
wi thdrawn the case and has fi led the appeal before APT EL New Delhi against the KERC Order. 

The company pursuant 10 the directions issued by the Hon"bk Appellate Tribunal of Electricity 
("APTEL") vicle common order dated 24.11.2022 passed in Appeal No.182 of 202 1 along with 
connected mailers ("Common O rder") approached the KERC Bengaluru . 

T/Je KERC Bengaluru allowed t/Je petirion. th<' following order has passed by the KERC 0 11 

21.03.202] 

a) The petitions are allowed. 

b) The delay is condoned i11 commissioning of Solar Power Pmj..:cts by the pe1i1ione,:, and 
co11scquently wrijj of RR 8 . ./0 per unit is allowed as :igrcecl in PPA. 

c) The rcspondem ESCOMs are directed not to le,~v liquared damages and if already levied the 
same shall be refundf!d ro the Petitioner within t\\'o months. 

d) The Petitioners are emirled for imerest at the rate of JO% p.a. for dijferemial tari}lfor the 
period from the da:e of COD rill da:e of payment. 

e) The Respondent ESCOMs are directed to make payment with interest within 90 days from the 
date of this order/ailing which the Petitioner is emit fed for late Payment Surcharge from the 
date of default till r<'ali:.atio11. 

Afrer the Final Judgement is passed by KERC. Bengaluru, thl! balance amount of Rs. 92.382 from FY 
2017-18 10 FY 2022-23 will bt! recoverable by the company as per the order. Also. the liquidated 
damages paid earlier of Rs.3.000 is also recoverable. The interest entitled 011 the d ifferential tariff and 
liquidated damages rccoverab!e will be accounted on receipr basis. 

F.Y Number of Units Rate per unit 13alan<"C Amount 

2022-23 -1.637.496 -1.0-1 18.735 

2021-22 -1.459.280 -1.0-1 18.01 5 

2020-21 -U16.650 -1.0-t l 7.-t39 
20 19-20 -1.526.360 4.0-t 18.279 

20 18-19 4.1 3 1.670 4.04 16.691 
20 I 7- 18 797.800 -t04 3.223 j 

Total 92.382 



• The total amount of Rs.28. 129 (Rs. I .23 X 2.28.69.256 Units) to be paid to the Farmer as per 
MOU from June 2017 till March 2023. has been recognized in the r-inancial Statements in the 
current financial year. since the company is now certain to realize the amount from BESCOi\,I 
owing to the KERC Order. This amount wi ll be paid once the amount is realized from 
BESCOM. 

• Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Management's Responsibility fo r the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company·s board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section I 3-t(5) of the 
Companies Act.20 13 ("the Act'') with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position. financial performance and cash flows of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the accounting 
standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
_judgments and estimates that are reaso11able and prudent; and design. implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
cornplcteness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair vievv and are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud 
or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements. managemem is responsible fo r assessing the Company's 
abi lity to continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable. matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless rnan::igement either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations. 01 has no realistic alternati,·e but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors nrc also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auc.Jitor's Responsibility for the Auc.Jit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a 
,, hole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and arc considered material if. indi,·idually or in the 
aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticisrn throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks or material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive lo lhosc risks. 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to pro\'ide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than tor one 
resulting from error. as fraud may involve collusion. forgt!ry. intentiona) omissions. 
misrepresentations. or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to lhe audit 111 order --~--- t 



procedures that are appropriate in the ci rcumstances. Under section 1-l-3(3)(i) of the Act. we arc 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and. based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability lo continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we arc required to draw attention in 
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modiJy our opinion. Our condusions arc based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date or our audi tor's report. However. future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements. 
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financiai statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in 
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters. the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. ir.cl11ding any signilic:.mt deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thoug.ht lo bear on our independence, and where applicable. related 
safeguards. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requiremcnh 

I. As required by the Companies (Audi tor's Report) Order. 2020 (''the Order .. ). issued by the Central 
Government of r ndia in terms of sub-section ( 11 ) or Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013. we 
enclose in the Annexure - 8, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said 
Order. 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act. we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and exrlanations which to the best or our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audi t; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as rcqu:red by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as appears from our examination of those books: 

(c) The Balance Sheel, Lhe StaLement or Profi1 and Loss including the SLaterncnt of Other 
Comprehensive Income. the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt . 
with by this Report are in agreement with ~he books of account: 



(cl) In our opinion. the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the /\et, read with Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules. 20 15 . as amended: 

(e) On the basis of the written representations rcctived from the d irectors as on March 3 1. 2023 
taken on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is di squalified as on Marcl1 3 1. 
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the /\et; 

(0 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company with reference to these Ind /\S financial statements and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. refer to our separate Report in .. /\ nnexure A .. to this report: Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
company"s internal financial controls ov~r financial reporting. 

(g) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company. managerial remuneration has not been paid / provided. 
Accordingly. reporting under section 197( 16) of the Act is not applicable: and 

Q1) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance wi th 
Rule I I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 20 14. in our opinion and to the best or 
our information and according lo the explanations given to us: 

L The Company does not hnve any pending litigations which could impact its financial 
position. 

IL The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative <.:antrncts fo r 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

nL There wcn.: no amounts which were required to be transferred to the ln\'estor Educat ion 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

,v. The management has represented that. to the best of its knowledge and be lief. other than 
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts. 

1. No lunds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds 
or share premium or any other sources or kind of l"unds) by the company lo or in 
any other person or entity, including foreign entities 'Intermediaries'. with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or other\\'ise, that the Intermediary 
shall. whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of' the company 'Ultimate 
Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiari~s: and 

11. No funds have been received by the company l'rom any person or entity. including 
foreign entities 'Funding Parties'. with the understanding. whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the company shall. ,-vhethcr. directly or indirectly. lend 
or invest in other persons or entities !dcntif:ed in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee. 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Ben<:ticiaries. 

111. Based on audit procedures can-ied out by us, that we have considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has 
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii ) contain 
any material misstatement. 



v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the year and accordingly 
reporting on the compliance with section 123 of the Companies /\et.20 13 is not applicable 
for the year under consideration. 

VL As proviso to Rule 3( I ) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 (as amended). which 
provides for books of account to have the feature of audit trail , edit log and related matters 
in the accounting software used by the Company. is appl icable 10 the Company only with 
effect from financial year beginning April I. 2023. the reporting under clause (g) of Ruic 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 20 I 4 (as amended). is current ly not 
applicable. 

For ABCD & Co, 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm No: 0 164 l5S 

umar Bachhawat - 1 

rvlcmbership No: 214520 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 22nd May 2023. 
UDI : 232 l4520BG\VSYl17559 



Anncxure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ·Report on other legal and regulatory requirements· section of our 
report to the members of Flaunt Solar Energy Private Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section l43 of the 
Com panics Act, 20 I 3 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting. of Flaunt Solar Energy Private 
Limi ted ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023. in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nole on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Th~s~ 
responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and eflicient conduct or its business. including 
ndherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and detection or frauds 
and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation or reliabk 
financial infonnation, as required under the Companies Act.2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opin ion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance \\'ith the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal r-inancial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section I 43( I 0) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and. both issued by the Institute 
or Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply wi th 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audi t to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 1nd AS financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in al l material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obta in aud it evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these lnd /\S financial statements a11d their 
operating effecti veness. OU!' audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind J\S 
financial statements. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed nsk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgement. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of th~ 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS 
financial statements. 



Meaning o f Internal Financial Controls Over Financia l Reporting w ith Reference to these Financial 
Statements 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial 
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with refc~!·cnce to these Ind AS linancial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that 

( I) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions arc recorded as nel:essary to permit preparation or 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and 

(3) pro\'ide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition. 
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financia l Reporting with Reference to 
these Ind AS Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal linancial controls over linancial rcpo11ing with reference to 
these Ind AS financial statements. including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
or cuntrols. material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections 
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind /\S 
financial statements to future periods are subject t0 the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial state1nents may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

O pinion 

In our opinion. the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting with reference to these lnd AS financial statements were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2023. based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidanl:e Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

f-or ABCD & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm No: 0 164 l5S 

~MA .,. 
\~:.~achhawat-l"af:tut:::~ 

lembership No: 2 14520 
Place: Chcnnai, 
Date: 22nd May 2023. 
UDIN: 232 14520BGWSYU7559 



Annexure "B" to the Independent Auditor's Report 

(Referred to in paragraph I under ·Report on other legal and regulatory requirements· section or our 
repo11 to the members of Flaunt Solar Energy Private Limited or even date) 

I. . Fixed assets: 
a) (A) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company is maintaining proper records showing rull particulars. including quantitative 
details and situation of propeny, plant and equipmcm. 

(B) The Company docs not have any intangible assets. 

b) The property. plant and equipment or the Company were physically verified by the 
management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us 
and as examined by us, no material discrepancies were;: noticed on such verilication. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by 
us, we report that. t.he Company does not hold any freehold land as at the balance sheet 
date. In respect of immovable properties of land that have been taken 011 lease. the lease 
agreements as per Power purchase agreement emered " ith former are in the name of the 
Company. 

d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the year. 

e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us and as represented by the 
management. no proceedings have been initiated on or arc pending against the Company 
for holding benami proprrty under the Prohibition of Bcnami Properly Transactions /\cl. 
1988 (as amended in 2016) (fonnerly the Benarni Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 
(45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder. and therefore the question of our commenting 
on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in its financial statements 
does not nrise. 

2. Inventories: 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given lo us. and on the 
basis of our examination of the hooks of accour.1, the Company does not ha,·e any 
inventory as on J I 51 March. 2023. 

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capi tal limits in excess or live crure 
rupees, in aggregate. from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current 
assets at any point of time during the year. 

3. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us and on the basis o r our 
examination of the books of account, the Company has not made any investments in/provided any 
guarantee or security/granted any loans. secured or unsecured. to companies, tirms. Limited 
Liabi lity Partnerships or other parties listed in the register maintained under Section 189 or the 
Companies Act, 2013. Consequently. the provisions of clauses iii (a) to (g) of the order arc not 
applicable to the Company. 

4. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us. the company has not 
granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any security or 111adc any investments during 
the year as speci tied under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act. 2013. /\ccordingly. clause 
(iv) of the order is not applicable. 

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the di recti 



Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules. 20 15 regarding. to the deposits accepted 
from the public are not applicable. 

6. The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub - section 
( I) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities can·ied on by the company. However. the 
overall turnover from all its products and services is less than 35 crnrcs in the preceding financial 
year. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) is not applicable to the company. 

7. In respect of statutory dues: 

a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the books of account. anci records, the Company has generally been regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including Income-Tax. Sales tax. Service Tax. Good and Service 
tax (GST), Cess and any other statutory du~s with the appropriate authorities. There were 
no undisputt:d amounts payable in respect of the above as at March 3 1. 2023 for a period ot' 
more than six months from the date on when they become payable. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to me. there arc no dues of income tax. 
sales tax, service tax. Good and Service tax (GST) outstanding on account of any dispute. 

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
transactions not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 ( 43 of 1961 ). 

9. 

10. 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me, the Company 
has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks or other borrowings or in the payment 
of interest thereon to any lender during the year. The lntc:r Corporate Borrowings arc 
repayable on demand and terms a!ld conditions for payment o r interest thereon have not 
been stipulated. According to the information and explanations given to us. such loans and 
interest thereon have not been demanded tor repayment during the relevant financial year. 

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company 
is not declared as a will ful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lenckr. 

c) [n our opinion and according to the information and explanations gi \·cn to us. the Company 
has not obtained any new term loans during the year. 

d) In our opinion and according to the infom1ation and explanations given to us. funds raised 
on short term basis have not been uti I ized for long term purposes. 

c) The Company does not have any subsidiaries/associates/joint-ventures anct accordingly. 
paragraphs 3 (ix) (e) and 3 (ix) ( f) of the Order are not applicable. 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company 
has not raised any money by \ ay of initial public offer or further public ofle r (including 
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 
debentures (fully. partially or optiorn1lly convertible) during the year. Accordingly. paragraph 
3 (x) (b) of the Order is not applicable. 



11. 

a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to 
us. no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been 
noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly. clause(xi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

b) No report under subsection (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under the ru le 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 
with the central government, during the and up to the date of this reporl. 

c) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, no whistle-blower complaints. have been received by the Company during the year. 

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause(xii) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

13. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me. all transactions with 
the related parties arc in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act. 201 3 and the 
details have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. 

14. 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company 
does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system 
as per provisions of the Companies /\et 2013. 

b) The company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit. 

15. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the mformation anJ explanations given by the 
management. the company has not cnlered any non-cash t:-nnsactions with directors or pL·rsons 
connected with him. Accordingly. the provisions of section 192 and clause(xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

16. 

a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under sect ion 45 IA of th~ 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly. the provisions of clnusc(xvi) (a) and (b) 
of the Order are not applicable. 

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company 
is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and it does not have any other companies in the 
Group as a CIC. Accordingly. paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) and (cl) of the of the Order arc not 
applicable. 

17. The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs.2,567 (ln ·u00:i) in the currcm financial year and but did 
not incur cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year. 

l 8. There has been no resignation of the statuto,y auditors Juring the year. Accord ingly. clause(xviii ) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

19. In our opinion and according to tht..' information and explanations given to us and on the basis o r the 
linancial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of fi nancial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the fimmcial statements. our knowledge of the board of 
directors and management plans, there are no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 
report that Company is capable of meeting its linbilitil.!s existing at the date of balance sheet as a,~d 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We. how · e that 
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this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting 
is based on fac ts up to the date of audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities fall ing due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. will get 
discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 

20. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. section 135 of 
Companies act is not applicable to the company. Accordingly, reporting under clause3(xx)(a) and (b) 
of the order is not nppl icable for the year. 

21. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audi t of Standalone 
Financial Statements. Accordingly. no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in th is 
report. 

For ABCD & Co, 
Chartered Accountants 
Fi rm No: 016415S 

ar Bachhawa -
Membership No: 214520 
Place: Chennai, 
Date: 22nd May 2023. 
UDI : 23214520BGWSYU7559 
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FJ,,AUNT SOLAR ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U40107KA201SPTC081573 
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023 

ASSETS 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
Capita l Work In Progress 
Financial Assets 

Other Financial assets 
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 
Total No11-Curre11t Assets 

CU RRENT ASSETS 

Financial Assets 
Trade Receivables 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Other Financial assets 

Other Current Assets 
Total Curre11t assets 
Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
EQU ITY 

Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 
Total Equity 

LIABILITIES 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings 
Total Non-Current liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings 
Trade Payables Due to 

Micro and Small Enterprises 
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 

Other Financ ial Liabilities 
Other Current Liabilities 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
Total Equity and Liabilities 

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements : 1-35 
As per our report of even date 
for Al3CD & Co. 
Chartered Acco1111ta111s 
Firm No: 0l64 l5S 

:?! 0,..e 
11' Kumar Bachhawat - Pa 

Membersh ip No: 2 14520----- -
Place: Chennai, 
Date: 22 .05.2023. 

(Rs. /11 '000) 

Notes 

As at 

31-Mar-23 
As at 

31-Mar-22 

4 

5 

6 
24 

7 
8 
9 
10 

II 

12 

13 

14 
15 

16 
17 

I, 18.1 0 1 
JOI 

7,062 
9,038 

1,34,5()3 

94,490 
2,239 

20 
342 

97,090 
2,31,593 

100 
84,349 
84,449 

1,07,127 
/,()7, 127 

10,800 

195 
491 

28,357 
175 

40,018 
l ,47,144 

2,3 1,593 

for Flaunt Solar Energy Private Limited 

Fr~rnar 
Director 
DIN: 07162895 
Place: Bengaluru 

Director 
DIN: 10042993 
Place: Bengaluru 

1.33,306 

6.740 
7.474 

1,4 7, 52(} 

75,729 
145 
::w 

191 
76,084 

2,23,604 

100 
1,06,425 
1,06,525 

1,05.066 
1,05,066 

10.800 

256 
842 
105 

10 
12, 013 

l,17,079 

2,23,604 



Fl.,AUNT SOLAR ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
ClN: U40107KA2015PTC081573 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 

INCOME 
Revenue From Operations 
Other Income 
Total Income 

EXPENSES 

Employee Benefit Expenses 
Finance Costs 
Deprec iation / Amortisation Expenses 
Other Expenses 
Total expenses 

Profit/ (Loss ) Before tax 

TAX EXPENSES 
Current Tax 
Deferred Tax 

Profit for the Period 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 
Rerneasurements of defined benefit obligations, net 
Total Comprehens ive Income for the year 

Earnings per equity share (of face va lue of Rs. I O each) 
Bas ic (in Rs) 

Di luted (in Rs) 

We ighted average equity shares used in computing earnings per 
equity share 
13as ic 
Diluted 

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements: 1-35 
As per our repo11 of even date 
For ABCD & Co. 
Chartered Accounta11ts 
Firm No: 0164 I 5S 

@ 
Vmay Kumar Bachhawat - PartneL_.._. 
Membership No: 214520 
Place: Chennai, 
Date: 22.05.2023. 

Notes For the Year ended 

31-Mar-23 

18 

19 

20 

2 1 

22 
')"' _., 

24 

25 

38,955 

1,1 95 

40,150 

810 

12,436 

15,201 

33,883 

62,331 

(22, 181) 

( 1,564) 

(20,617) 

(20,617) 

(2,062) 

(2,062) 

10,000 

93.657 

(Rs. In '000) 

For the Year ended 

31-Mar-22 

37,458 

374 

37,832 

7 16 

13.334 

16,8 18 

4,069 

34,93 7 

2,895 

1,803 

1,092 

1,092 

109 

57 

10.000 

82,754 

For r-Iaunt Solar Energy Private Limited 

rj!!f:u~° K! a, 
Director 
DIN: 07162895 
Place: Bengaluru 

Director 
DIN: I 0042993 
Place: Bengaluru 



' FLAUNT SOLAR ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
C IN: U40107KA2015PTC081573 
Cash Flow Statement for the year e nded March 31 2023 

Particulars 
For the year ende d 

31 March 2023 

(Rs. /11 '000) 
for the year ended 

3 1 March 2022 
A. Cas h flow from operating activ ities 

Ne t Prolit/ (Loss) before tax 
Adjus tments for : 
Depreciation 
Loss on Disposa l o f Assets 
Inte rest income 
I ntc rcst expcnsc 
O perating loss before working capital c hanges 

Adjustments for ( inc rease) / decrease in operating assets : 
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in opera ting liabilities : 
Trade Receivables 
O the r C urre nt Assets 
Trade Payables 
O the r Financial Liabilities 
O the r C urre nt Lia bilities 
Cash used in operations 

Ne t cas h flow from/ (used) in operating activities 

B. Cas h flow from investing activit ies 

Purchase of tangible and intangible assets 
( I nvcstmc nl) / realisation of F~xcd Depos its 
I ntc rest received 
Ne t cas h flow from/ (used) investing activit ies 

C. Cas h flow from financing activities 
Proceeds from /( Repayment o f) 13orrowings 
Interest Paid 
I ncrcasc in De bentures 
Redemption Of Debentures 
Net cas h flow from/ (used) in financing activ ities 

Net inc rease/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivale nts ( A+B+C) 
Cas h and cas h equivale nts at the beginning of the year 

Cas h and cas h equivale nts at the e nd ofthe period 

Cas h and cas h equivale nts as per cas h flow s tatement 
Cash on hand 

Balance with ba nks in c urrent account 
Cas h anti cas h equivalents as per Balance s heet 

Notes 

(22,181) 2.895 

15,20 1 16.8 18 

3 
(360) (340) 

12,436 13.334 
5,099 32,708 

( 18,761) ( 16-373) 
( 151 ) (46) 
(4 12) ( 134) 

28.207 14 
165 ( (i I ) 

14, 146 16, I 08 

14, 146 16, 108 

(30 1) (7.970) 
(302) 600 
340 428 

(264) (6,942) 

( 1,912) (22.889) 
(7,990) (9.842) 

26.570 
( 1.886) (2.975) 

( 11,788) (9, 136) 

2,094 30 
145 11 5 

2,239 145 

2,239 145 

2.239 145 
2,239 145 

I. The cash flow statement is prepared under Indirect Method as set out in Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows notified 
under sect ion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

2. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet. 

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements : 1-35 

As per our report of even date 

For ABCD & Co. For Flaunt Solar Energy Private Limited 
Chartered Acco1111ta11ts 
rirn1 No: 016415S 

umar Bachhawat - _ __ _ 
Membership No: 214520 
Place: Chennai, 
Date: 22.05 .2023. 

-=k~-? 
franc is Arun Kumar 
Director 
DIN: 07162895 
Place: Bcngaluru 

Director 
DIN: 10042993 
Place: 13engaluru 



. 
FLAUNT SOLAR ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U40107KA2015PTC081573 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(Rs. /11 '000) 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Par1iculars No ofShares A mo unt in Rs 
Equity shares IN R 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid 
As at 31st March 2022 10,000 100 
Issue of equity s hares - -
As at 31st March 2023 I 0,000 100 

B. OTHER EQUITY 

Retained 
Equity Component of Items ofOther Total equity 

Particulars 
Earnings 

Compound Financial Com pre hens ive attributable to 

As at 31 March 2022 (39,534) 
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year (20,617) 
Less: Debentures redeemed -
As at 31 March 2023 (60,15 1) 

See accompany ing notes to the Financial Statements: 1-35 
As per our report of even date 

for ABC D & Co. 
Chartered Accou11ta111s 
Firm No: 016415$ 

Kumar Bachhawat - Partiier 
Membersh ip No: 2 14520 
Place: Chcnnai, 
Date : 22.05.2023. 

Ins trument income equity ho Ide rs 
1,45,959 - 1,06,425 

- - (20.6 17) 
1,459 - 1,459 

1,44,500 - 84,349 

For Flaunt Solar Energy Private Limited 

Frn?ct:~umar 
Director 
DIN: 0 7162895 
Place: Bengaluru 

i 
' ::) 

~ ·"S l , \;+ 
Man ikandan T '-:: 'Q L7 \. 
Director 
DIN: I 0042993 
Place: Bengaluru 



FLAUNT SOLAR ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U40107KA2015PTC081573 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

I. Corporate Information 
Flaunt Solar Energy Private Limited is incorporated in July 20 15 hav ing its registered office in Karnataka. registered 
under the Companies Act 20 13. It is formed to act as a Specia l Purpose Veh icle (SPY) for the limited purpose to 
develop, execute, manage and run solar power generation project. 

2. Basis of Preparation 
a. Compliance with Ind AS 
The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 20 I 3 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20 15 (as 
amended)] and other relevant provis ions of the Act. 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 
Detai ls of the Company's s ignificant accounting pol icies are included in Note 3. 

IJ. Historical cost convention 
The financia l statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the fol lowing: 
- certain financial assets and liabi lities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value; 
- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; and 
- share-based payments measured at fa ir value. 

c. New and amended standards adopted 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended certain accounting standards, and are effective I Apri l 2022. 
These amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to 
s ignificantly affect the current or future periods. 

d. Operating Cycle 
Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the nonna l time between acquisition of assets and their 
realization in cash or cash equiva lents, the Company has determined its operating cyc le as 12 months for the purpose 
of classificat ion of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current. 

e. Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates (' the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian 
rupee, which is the Company's functiona l and presentation currency. 

f. Use of estimates 
In preparing these financial statements, Management has madej udgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized prospectively. 
Judgements are made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized 
in the financial statements and the same is disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resu lting in a material adjustment are 
reviewed on an on-going basis and the same is disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 

g. Measurement of fair values 
rair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabi lity in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fa ir value of an asset or a liability. the Company takes 
into1.-aJ:~li£ll the characteristics of the asset or liabi lity if market participants would take those characteristics . into 

ij ~ itl* ricing the asset or liabil ity at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement ~ ·sclosure 
. '1!! scs in ~ financial statements is detennined on such a basis and measurements that hav s · ·ties to 

1
~ value bt ; not fa ir value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind .S r RN:
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In addition, for financ ia l reporting purposes, fa ir value measurements are categorised into Level I, 2 or 3 based on 
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the 
fa ir value measurement in its entirety, which are described as fo llows: 
- Level I inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can 
access at the measurement date. 
- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level I, that arc observable for the asset or 
liability, e ither directly ( i.e .as prices) or indirectly ( i.e ., derived from prices); 
- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs fo r the asset or liability. 

3. Significant Accounting Policies 

a. Revenue Recognition 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are rendered to the 
customer at an amount that renects the consideration to wh ich the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
for those goods or services. 
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price. which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other 
incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts 
collected from customers in its capacity as an agent. If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, 
the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the 
goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is 
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur 
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. 

b. P,·operty, plant and equipment 
i. Tangible 
Tangible property, plant and eq uipment (PPE) acquired by the Company are reported at acqu1s1t1on cost less 
accumu lated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The acquisition cost includes any cost 
attributable for bringing an asset to its working condition net of tax/duty credits avai led, which comprises of purchase 
consideration and other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition for the ir intended 
use. PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item wi ll flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured re liably. 

ii. Capital work-in-progress 
PPE not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as "capital work-in-progress" and 
carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related inc idental expenses and attributable interest. 

iii. Intangible 
Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset 
wi ll flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at origina l 
cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impainncnt. Administrative 
and other general overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to the acqu isition of intangible assets arc 
allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the intangible assets. Expenses on software support and maintenance 
a re charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which such costs are incurred. 

iv. Intangible assets under development 
Intangible assets not ready fo r the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as " Intangible assets under 
development". 

v. Depreciation and Amortisation 
Depreciable amount for tangible property, plant and equipment is the cost of an asset, or other amount substi tuted 
for cost, less its estimated res idual va lue. Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment has been prov ided 
on the written down method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 201 3. Depreciation 
method is reviewed at each financial year end to renect expected pattern of consumption of the future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset. 
The estimated useful li fe and residual values are also reviewed at each fi nancial year end with the effect of any 
c · he estimates of useful life/residua l value is accounted on prospective basis. Depreciation for additions 

on owned assets is calculated pro rata to the remaining period of use. Depreciation charge for.impa ired 
~ ed in future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying amount of tl d over its 

~ ul life. All capital assets with individual value less than Rs. 5,000 are dep he year in 
" purchased. 



Estimated useful life consi d h C ered by t e ompany are: 

Asset Estimated Useful Life 

Tools & Equipment I O Years 
Plant and Machineries 25 Years 

vi. Impairment of assets 
Upon an observed trigger or at the end o f each accounting year, the Company reviews the carry ing amounts of its 
PPE, investment property and intangible asset to determine whether there is any ind ication that the asset have suffered 
an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the PPE, investment property and intangible assets are tested for 
impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any. 

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable 
amount is the higher of fa ir value less cost of disposal and value in use. 

vii. De-recognition of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset 
An item of PPE and intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE 
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carry ing amount of the asset and is recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

c. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash nows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash 0 11 hand. 
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term. highly liquid investments with original maturities o f 
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which arc subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. 

d. Foreign Currency Transaction 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates or the 
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the selllement of such transactions and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabi lities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are 
generally recognized in statement profit and loss. A monetary item for which settlement is neither planned nor likely 
to occur in the foreseeable future is considered as a part of entity' s net investment in that foreign operation. Non­
monetary assets and non-monetary liabil ities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fa ir value are 
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fai r value was determined. Non-monetary assets and 
non-monetary liabilities denominated in a fore ign currency and measured at historica l cost arc translated at the 
exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction. 
Foreign exchange differences arising on translation of foreign currency borrowings are presented in the statement of 
profit and loss, within finance costs. All other lo reign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of 
profit and loss on a net basis within other income or other expense. 

c. Income Taxes 
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based 0 11 

the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary 
differences and unused tax losses. 
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end 
o f the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in 
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establ ishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of 
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. The Company measures its tax balances for uncertain tax positions 
either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method prov ides a better prediction 
of the resolution of the uncertainty. 
Deferred income tax is prov ided in full , using the liability method, on temporary differences aris ing between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is not 
accounted for if it arises from init ial recognition of an asset or liabil ity in a transaction other than a business 
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred 
in"==--"· is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end o f the 

:od and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is rea li ~ r the 'deferred 
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Deferred tax assets and liabi lities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabi lities 
are offset where the entity has a lega lly enforceable right to offset and intends either lo settle on a net basis, or to 
realize the asset and settle the liabi lity simultaneously within the same jurisdiction. 

Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred lax is recognized in statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to item 
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case. the tax is also recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

f. Provisions, and Contingencies 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of a past event. 
it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. 
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation 
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surround ing the obligation. When a 
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present 
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). The discount rate used to determ ine 
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time va lue of money and the risks 
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense. A 
disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may 
probably not require an outflow of resources or an obligation for which the fu ture outcome cannot be ascertained with 
reasonable certainty. When there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is 
remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
Provision for onerous contracts i.e., contacts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under 
the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it, are recognized when it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result o f an 
obligating event, based on re liable estimate of such obligation. 

g. Earnings Per Share 
(i) Basic earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: - the profit attributable to owners of the Company - by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstand ing during the financial year, adjusted for bonus 
elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding trcasu,y shares. 

(ii) Diluted earnings per share 
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take 
into account: 
- the after-income tax efTect o f interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity 
shares, and 
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the 
conversion of a ll dilutive potential equity shares. 
- potentially issuable equ ity shares, that could potentially di lute basic earnings per share, are not inc luded 
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share when they are anti-d ilutive for the period presented. 

h. Cash Flow Statements 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects o f 
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferra ls or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and 
item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, 
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

i. Financial Instruments: 
The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual prov isions 
of the instrument. All financial assets and liabi lities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade 
receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acq uisition or issue of financial assets and financia l liabilities, which arc not at fair value through protit or loss, arc 
a 9? ~ fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly at1ributable to the acquisition of financia l 

. ~J}~ ·a1 liabilit ies at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.-
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- those measured at amortised cost. 
The classification depends on entity' s business model for managi ng the financial assets and the contractual te rms of 
the cash flow. 
For assets measured at fair value, ga ins and losses wi ll e ither be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive 
income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. 
For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at 

the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair va lue through other comprehensive income. 
The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets 
changes. 
Recognition 
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Company 
commits to purchase or sa le the financial asset. 

Subsequent Measurement 
Debt Instruments 
i) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a bus iness model whose obj ective is 
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that arc solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Any 
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recogn ised directly in profit or loss. Impairment losses are presented as a 
separate line item in statement of pro fit and loss. 
ii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a 
bus iness model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments o r 
principa l and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable election for its 
investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in fa ir value in other 
comprehensive income based on its business model. 
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses. 
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit and loss. When the financial 
asset is derecognized, the cumulative ga in or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to the 
statement of profit and loss and recognised under other income/ other expenses. Interest income from these financial 
assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. 

iii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 
Assets that do not meet the criteria fo r amortized cost or FYOCI are measured at fa ir value through profit or loss. A 
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profi t or loss and is not part of 
a hedging relationship is recognized in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss in the period 
in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income. 

iv) Equity Instruments 
The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fa ir value. Where the Company has elected to present 
fa ir value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent 
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss fol lowing the dcrecognition of the investment. Dividends 
from such investments are recognized in profit or loss as other income when the Company 's right to receive payments 
is established. Changes in the fa ir value of financial assets at fa ir value through profit or loss arc recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured 
al FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fa ir value. 

v) Impairment of Financial Assets 
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which 
arc not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component 
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, ECLs are measured at an amount equal 
to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a s ignificant increase in credit risk from initial.recognition in. which case 
those::a:R:::t}:teasured at li fetime ECL, as applicable, as the case may be. The amount of EC Ls OF-ft>-1.<ersals, if any) that 

adjust the loss allowance at the reporting elate to the amount that ~ ~~ ecognizecl is 
1 impainnent gain or loss in the profit or loss. *~ * 
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vi) Financial Liabilities 
Financial liability and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabi lities or as equity 
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an 
equ ity instrument. 
Financial liabil ities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for 
contingent consideration recognized in a business combination, which is subsequently measured at fa ir va lue through 
profit or loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying 
amounts approximate fa ir value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

vii) Derecognition of Financial Instruments 
Financial Asset 
A financial asset is derecognized only when 
- the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or 
- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obl igation to 
pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 
Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially a ll risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has 
not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not 
derecognized. 
Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor reta ins substantially a ll risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. 
Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of 
continuing involvement in the financial asset. 
Financial Liability 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

j. Leases 

The company assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of the contract. A contract is. or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identi fied asset fo r a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset, the company assesses whether (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the company has 
substantially a ll of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease and ( iii) the 
company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The company has appl ied the exernption of not to recognize 
Right to Use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial appl icat ion 
as a practical expediency. f-or these short tenn and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payrnents 
as an operating expense on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. 

k. Inventories 

Inventories (raw material - components including assemblies and sub assembl ies) are stated at the lower o f cost and 
net realisable value. Cost of inventory inc ludes cost of purchases and all other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of 
weighted average method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

I. T,·adc Receivables 

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of 
bus iness and reflects company's unconditiona l right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage of 
time). Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing 
components. The company holds the trade receivables with the o~jective of collecting the contractual cash flows and 
therefore measures them subsequently at arnortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss a llowance. 
The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled 
revenue. 
A receivable is a right to consideration that is conditional only upon passage of time. Revenue in excess of billings is 
recorded as unbilled revenue and is classified as a financial asset as only the passage of time is requ ired before the 
payment is due. Invoicing in excess of earnings are classified as contract liabilities which is disclosed as deferred 
revenue. 
T bles and unbilled revenue are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet. 

~ yablcs 
. e am fi?n 

1
s represent liabilities for goods and services prov ided to the Company prior to tl I year 

h--Rfe..cufi paid. The amounts are usually unsecured. Trade payables are presented as ct n less ,, .. .,..,·j-i"\..' '/ 



. payment is not due with in twelve months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fa ir value 
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

n. Borrowings 
l3orrowings are initially recognized at fa ir val ue, net of transaction costs incurred . Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount 
is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the 
establishment ofloan fac i lilies arc recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some 
or all of the fac ility wil l be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent 
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or al l of the fac ility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a 
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the fac ility to which it relates. 
Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled 
or expired. The difference between the carry ing amount of a financia l liabi lity that has been extinguished or 
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabi li ties 
assumed, is recognised in Statement of profit and loss under other expenses. 
Borrowings are classified as current liabi lities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liabi lity for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of material provision of a long 
term loan arrangement on or before the date of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable 
on demand on the reporting date, the Company does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the 
reporting period and before approval of the financia l statements for issue. not to demand payment as a consequence 
of the breach. 

o. Exceptional items 
When an item of income or expense within Statement o f profit and loss from ordinary activity is of such size, nature 
or incidence that its disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the Company for the year, the natui:e and 
amount of such items is disclosed as exceptional items. 
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4. Property, Plant and Equipment 
T "bi As t anm e se s 

Plant & Tools & 
Furniture Description 

Machinery Equipment 
Gross Block 
Balance as at 3 1st March 2022 
Additions 
Deletions 
Balance as at 31 st March 2023 

Accumulated Depreciation 
Balance as a t 31st March 2022 
C harge for the year 
Disposals 
Balance as at 31st March 2023 

Net Block 
Balance as at 31st March 2023 
Balance as at 31s t March 2022 

5. Capital Work in Progress 

Capital Work in Progeress - Supply 
Total 

Capital Work in Progress - Ageing Sche dule 

2,30,591 
-
-

2,30,591 

97,305 
15,197 

-
1, 12,502 

I , 18,089 
1,33,286 

45 
-
-
45 

28 
.., 
J 

-
32 

13 
16 

As at 
31-Mar-23 

301 
301 

Amount in CWIP for a pedod of 
Particulars Less than 3 years 

one year 
l-2 years 2-3 years 

and above 
Projects in Progress 301 - - -
Total 301 - - -

6. Other Financial Assets - Non-Current 

Bank Deposits 7,062 
Total 7,062 

7. Trade Receivables 
(Unsecured) 

Trade Receivables 94,490 
Total 94,490 

(Refer Note 28 &29) 

26 

-
(26) 

-

22 
I 

(23) 

-

-
4 

(Rs. 111 '000) 

Total 

2,30,661 
-
(26) 

2,30,635 

97,356 
15,201 

(23) 
1, 12,534 

1, 18, I O 1 
1,33,306 

As at 
31-Mar-22 

6,740 
6,740 

75,729 
75,729 



(R.~. In '000) 
Ageing ofTrade Rece ivables : 

Outs tanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Particulars Less than 6 Months -

1-2 years 2-3 years 
3 years and 

Total 
6 Months l Year above 

As at 31s t March 2023 
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 12,197 8,636 18,015 17,439 38,201.64 94,490 
Total 12,197 8,636 18,0 l 5 17,439 38,202 94,490 
As at 3 1s t March 2022 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 2,073 - - - - 2,073 
(ii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good 9,394 8,621 17,439 18,286 19,915.06 73.656 
Total 11,467 8,621 17,439 18,286 19,9 15 75,729 

As at 
3 1-Mar-23 

As at 

31-Mar-22 
8. Cash and Cash Equivalent 

Cash on ha nd 
Balance with Banks 

In C urrent Accounts 
In r ixed Depos its 

Cash a nd Cash Equiva lents as per Balance Sheet 

Cash a nd Cash Equiva lents as per Cash Flow State ments 

9. Other Financial Assets 

Others 
Total 

10. Other Current Assets 
(Unsecured, Considered Good) 

Ba lance w ith Customs, Centra l Exc ise, GST and Sta te 
A uthorities 

O thers 

Total 

11. Share Capital 

Authorised 
I 0000 Equity Shares of~ I O each 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up 
I 0000 Equity Shares of~ I O each 

As at 
3 1 March 2023 

100 
100 

100 
100 

a.Reco11ciliatio11 of the shares 011tsta11di11g at the 
begi1111i11g mu/ at the ell(/ of the reporting period 
Equity Shares 

31 March 2023 
Number Amount 

At the commencement of the year 10,000 100 
ed during the year 
of the year 10,000 100 

;j 
'\ \ , 

2,239 145 

2,239 145 

2,239 145 

20 20 
20 20 

56 47 

286 144 
342 191 

As at 
31 March 2022 

100 
JOO 

100 
JOO 

3 1 March 2022 
Number Amount 

10,000 100 

10,000 JOO 



Rights , preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares 

The company has a s ingle class of equity s ha res. According ly, all equity shares rank equa lly \-vith rega rd to d ividends 

a nd s ha re in the company's res idual a ssets . The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend a s de clare d from time 

to time ane r s ubject to divide nd to pre fere nce share ho lde rs. The voting rights o f a n equity s hareholde r on a poll ( not 

show of hands) are in proportio n to its share o f the paid-up e quity c apital of the c ompa ny . 

On w inding up o f the c ompany, the ho lde r o f e quity shares will be e ntitled to rece ive the residual a ssets of the 

co mpany. re ma ining af te r distribution o f all pre fe re ntial amounts in proportion to the number o f equity s ha res he ld. 

b. Particular.,; of shareholders holding more than 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

5% .,·hares of a class of shares Number (% oftotal Number (%, of total 
s hares) shares) 

Equity shares of ~ I O each fully paid he ld by 
Re fex Green Power Limite d * 7.400 74% 7.400 74% 
Lakshmanmma 2,600 26% 2,600 26% 

10,000 100% 10,000 JOO% 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

c. Particulars nfslwreholdi11g of Promoters Number (% of total (% of change Number (% oftotal (% ofch:mge 
s hares) during the shares) during the 

year s hares) year s hares) 
Equity shares of ~ 10 each fully pa id he ld by 

Refex Green Power Limited* 7,400 74% 0% 7,400 74% 0% 
Lakshmanmma 2,600 26% 0% 2,600 26% 0% 

10,000 100% 0% 10,000 100% 0% 

*With e ffect from 5th May 2022, the name o f the Compa ny was changed from SIL Rooftop Solar Power Private Li!llitcd 
to "Refcx Green Power Private Limited". Furthe r w ith e ffect from I 0111 May . 2023, the name of the Company was changed 
from "Refcx Green Power Private Limited" to "Rcfcx Green Power Limited" 

12. Other Equity 

Reta ined Earnings 

Equity component of optionally convertible preference shares 

Total 

A RETAINED EARNI NGS 
Opening Balance 

Add : Surplus/Loss during the year 

Closing Balance 

B EQUITY COMPONENT OF COMPOUND FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENT 
Opening balance 

Add: Shares / debentures issued during the year 

Less: Debentures redeemed during the year 

Less: Liability component of OCRPS / O C D / CC D 
Closing Balance 

Total 

(60.151) (39.534) 

1,44,500 1.45.959 

84,349 1,06,425 

(39,534) (40,626) 
(20,6 17) 1,092 
(60, 151) (39,534) 

1,45,959 1.27,83 1 

26,570 

1.459 2.975 

5.467 

1,44,500 1,45,959 

84,349 1,06,425 



(Rs. In '000) 

I. The compound financial instrument relates to the Optional ly convertible preference shares ('OCPS') issued by the 
company. 

a. Authorised share capital 
3.00,000 Preference shares of ~ I O each 

Iss ued, Subs cribed and Paid up share capital 

71762 (Previous year: 7 1762) Optiona lly Conve11ible 

Preference Shares o f~ I O each 

31 

As at 

March 2023 

3.000 
3,000 

7 18 

718 

As at 

31 March 2022 

3,000 
3,000 

718 

718 

h. Rec:011c:iliatio11 of the shares 011tMa11ding at the beginning 
am/ at the end of the reporting period 

3 l M arch 2023 3 I March 2022 
Number Amount N umber Amount 

Optio,wl/y convertible Preference Shares 

At the commencement of the year 7 1,762 7 18 71,762 718 
Shares issued during the year 
At the end of the year 71 ,762 718 71,762 7 18 

c. Rig hts, preferences and res trictions attached to pre fere nce s hares 

0.0 I % Optionally convertible non-cumulative preference shares -.vere issued in the month of March 'I9 

(6 1237 share @ Rs. 10; Premium of Rs.2 II 4), December' 19(9026 Shares @ Rs.I0; Premium of Rs.2 I I 4) & 

August' 20( 1499 Shares @ Rs. I0; Premium of Rs.2239) pursuant to the share holders agreement. Optionally 
convertible non - cumulative preference shares are conve11iblc into equity share of par va lue Rs. I 0/- in the 
ratio of I: I. 

These preference shares are convertible at any time on or before the end of nineteenth year from the date of 
issuance at the option of the company. Preference shares sha ll be mandatorily converted to equity shares upon 
completion of a period of 19 years and I I months from the date of issuance and allotment of such prefe rence 
shares. T he holders of these shares are entitled to a non-cumulative dividend 0.01% . Preference shares carry 
a preferentia l r ight as to dividend over equity shareholders. The preference shares are entitled to one vote per 
share at meetings of the Company on any resolutions of the Company directly involving the ir r ights. 

d. Particulars of slwrelwlders l,o/di11g more tl,a11 5% shares ofa c:lt1ss of slwres 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Refex Green Power Limited* 
Number 

71,762 

71,762 

% 

100% 

100% 

Number 
71,762 

71,762 

2. The compound financial instrument relates to the Optionally convertible debentures ('OCD') issued by the 
company. 

% 

100% 

100% 

a. Iss ued, Subs cribe d and Paid up As at 3 1 March 2023 As at 3 1 March 2023 

Optiona lly Convertible Debentures of~ I O each 
Numbe r 

11,895 
11 ,895 

Amount 
119 
I I 9 

Numbe r 
12,936 

12,936 

Amount 
129 

129 

b. Reconciliation of the debentures outstanding at the 3 I March 2023 3 1 March 2022 
-------------------'----1 

beginning and at the em/ of the reporting p eriod 
all convertible Debentures 

mencement of the year 
issued during the year 
redeemed dur ing the year 

-~~ o fthe year 

Number 

12,936 

1,04 1 

I 1,895 

Amo unt 

129 

10 
11 9 

Number 

14,567 
1,63 1 

12,936 

A mo unt 

146 

16 
129 



(Rs. /11 '000) 
c. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to debentures 

0.01 % Optionally convertible debentures v,1e re issued in the month of March '22 (1 4567 debentures @ Rs. 10: 

Premium of Rs.1814) purs uant to the debenture holder's agreement. Optiona lly convertible debe ntures a re 

convertible into equity s hare of par value Rs. I 0/- in the ratio of I: I. In the mo nth of March '22, 1631 debentures 

were redeeme d by the ho lde r at issue price. further in current year during the month of June 2022, I 041 were 

redeemed a t issue price. 

These debentures are convertible a t any time on or before the e nd of nineteenth year from the date of iss ua nce 

at the option of the ho lde r. The ho lders of these debentures are e ntitled to a n inte rest o f0.01 % on par value of 

debentures. The debenture holders are entitled to one vote per debenture at meetings of the Company on a ny 

resolutio ns of the Compa ny directly involving their rights. 

d. Particulars of debe11t11re/10lders holding more 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 ---------------------
t ha 11 5 %slwres of a class of debe11t11res Number 0/4) Number 0/,, 

Re fex Gree n Power Limited* 

13. Borrowings• Long Term 

SECURED 
Borrowings from Banks & FI 

Less: Current Maturities of Long tenn Borrwings 

Total 

11 ,895 

11 ,895 
100% 12,936 

100% 12,936 

As at 
31-Mar-23 

7 1, 11 9 

(10.800) 

60,3 I 9 

100% 

100% 

(Rs. In '000) 
As at 

31-Ma r-22 

76,233 

(10,800) 

65,433 

Bank Borrowings is secured by hy pothecation of all Plant & Machineries procured for setting up the project & Farmer"s 
Land o f 15 Acres and 11 Guntas, Personal Guarantee o f Francis Arun Kumar, Dimple Jain. Anil Jain & Lakshmamma. 
Co,·porate guarantee of Sherisha Solar LLP, Refex Industries Limited & Sherisha Techno logies Private Limited. Collateral 
Security of Thiruporur Property measuring 4 acres and 19 cents held by Refcx Industries Limited, assignment of Power 
Purchase Agreement and Pledge of 5 1 % o f Promoter Share is given. The loan carries an interest rate of 11.55% as on 
31.03.2023 (31.03.2022: 9.15%). The loan is repayable by Nov 2029. 

UNSECURED 
Inter Corporate Deposits from Related Parties 
Liability component ofOCRPS / OCD 

Total 

3,201 

43,606 

46,807 
39.633 
39,633 

Inter Corporate Loans are taken for working capital requirements. The loan carries an interest rate of 8% per annum (P. >~: 
6.5% Per 0 111111111) o n the o utstanding amount. 

14. Borrowings- Current 

Current maturities on longterm borrowings 

Total 

IS. Trade Payable Due to 

Micro and Small Enterprise 

icro and Small Enterprise 

. er_h!.0 

~~ 

As at 
31-Mar-23 

10,800 

10,800 

195 

491 

686 

As at 
31-Mar-22 

10,800 

10,800 

256 

842 

1,098 



A ,!JClll!J 0 ra C ava es: fT d P bi 

Particulars 

As at 31st March 2023 

(i) MSME 
(ii) Others 
Total 

As at 3 1st March 2022 

(i) MSME 
( ii) Others 
Total 

16. Other Financial Liabilities - Current 

Interest accrued and due but not paid 
Payable to Farmers* 
Other Paya bles 
Total 

*Payable to Farmers (Note 30) 

17. Other Current Liabilities 

Statutory Dues (GST, TDS, etc.,} 

Total 

18. Revenue from Operations 

Sale of Power 
Total 

19. Other Income 
Interest Income 

Other Income 
Total 

20. Employee Benefit Expenses 
Salaries and wages 

Contribution to Provident Funds and Other founds 
Staff Wei fare 
Total 

2 I. Finance Cost 
Interest cost 

/n1ere.1·1 011 /11/er Corporate Deposits 

Co111111it111e11t Interest - Term Loan 

/111eres1 011 Term Loan 

. <-4(l I_""\\,.~ 

·esl on Financial Liabilily - OCD 

st 011 Financial Liabilily - OCPS 

Processing-A111or1i:ed Cos/ 

(Rs. !11 '000) 

Outstandin~ for following oeriods from due date of payment 

Less than 
one year 

195 
49 1 
686 

256 
20 

277 

1-2 years 

-

-
-

-
-
-

2-3 years 
3 yea rs and 

above 

- -

- -
- -

- -
821 -
821 -

As at 
31-Mar-23 

46 
28,129 

183 
28,357 

175 
175 

Total 

195 
491 
686 

256 
842 

1,098 

As at 
3 I-Mar-22 

105 
105 

10 
10 

For the Vear e nded 
31-Mar-23 

For the Year ended 
3 l-Mar-22 

38,955 
38,955 

360 
835 

1,195 

785 
26 

810 

12,436 
79 

7.906 

./02 

./.01 I 

38 

12,436 

37,458 
37,458 

340 
34 

374 · 

696 

20 
716 

13,334 
I , /90 

158 

8,36./ 

32 

3,58<) 

13,334 



22. Depreciation & Amortisation 

Depreciation 

23. Othe r Expenses 

Rates and Taxes 
Loss on Sale o f Fixed Assets 
Bank C ha rges 

Professiona I Fees 
Payment to Auditors 

Trave lling Expenses 

O pe rations and Mainte nance 
Rebate 

Payment to Farme rs* 

Insura nce Expenses 

Miscellaneous Expenses 
Total 

Payment to Auditors 

Sta tutory Aud it 

Certification and Other C harges 

(Refer Note 30) 

24. Tax Expenses 

C urre nt Tax 

Deferred Tax 

Tax reported in Profit & Loss 

A Deferred Tax Liabilties (Net) 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 
Fixed assets : Impact o f d ilTerence between tax depreciation and 
depreciation/amortisation for financ ial reporting 
Effect of cost o f Finance 

Gross Deferred Tax Liability 
Deferred Tax Assets 
Financia l assets at amortized cost 
Unused Tax Losses 

Gross Deferred Tax Assets 

Net Deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset) 

B Reconciliation of Deferred Tax liabilitv 

\, " 1,-, 11 \.\/, 
/ 

ing Deferred Tax Laibility 

rred C redit recorded in Statement of Profit & Loss 
rred T ax change recorded in OCI 

ing Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) (Net) 

(Rs. In '000) 
For the Year ended For the Year ende d 

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 

15,201 

15,201 

10 
3 
2 

2,040 
275 

36 

1,993 
808 

28. 129 

52 1 

67 
33,883 

2 10 

65 
275 

( 1,564) 

(1 ,564) 

As at 

31-Mar-23 

26.387 
26 1 

26,647 

35.685 
35,685 

(9,038) 

(7,474) 
( 1.564) 

(9,038) 

16.8 18 

16,818 

71 

170 
282 
257 

71 

2.087 

604 

492 

34 
4 ,069 

As at 

195 

62 

257 

1.803 

1,803 

3 I-Mar-22 

28.9 10 

28,9IO 

279 
36, 105 

36,384 

(7,474) 

(9,276) 
1.803 

(7,474) 



25. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

a. Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period 
b.Effect of dilutive common 
equivalent shares - Optionally Convertible Debentures 
c. Effect of dilutive common 
equivalent shares - Optionally Convertible Redeemable 
Preference Shares 
d. weighted average number of equity shares and common 
equivalent shares outstanding 

Diluted Earnings 
Profit After Tax 
Add: Interest on Financial Liabili ty - OCPS 
Add: Interest on Financial Liabili ty - OCD 
Total Dilutive Earnings 

Earnings per equity share (of face va lue of Rs. I O each) 
Basic 
Diluted* 

As at 

31-Mar-23 

10,000 

11,895 

7 1,762 

93,657 

(20.617) 

4,011 

402 
(16,204) 

(2.062) 

(2,062) 

(Rs. /11 '000) 

As at 

31-Mar-22 

10.000 

992 

71 ,762 

82,754 

1,092 

3,589 
"? J~ 

4,714 

109 
57 

* As the company has incurred loss during the year ended 31 March 2023, dilutive effect on weighted average number 
of shares would have an anti-dilut ive impact and hence, not considered in Diluted EPS computation. 

26. Related Party Transactions 

a. List of Related Parties* 
N f I I d amc o t 1e re ate party an d nature o f I • re ationslup 
Nature of Relationship Name of the Related Party 
Ultimate Holding Comoanv Refex Renewables & Infrastructure Limitect2 

Holding Company Refex Green Power Limited3 

Entities in which share holders / Sherisha Technolgies Pvt Ltd 
directors Me!!amic Electronics Private Limited 

Manikandan T 
Directors Patrik Vijay Kumar Francis Arun Kumar 

Lakshmamma Kasvanahalli Honnep_owda 

1 as identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors. 
2 With effect from 25th October 2022, the name of the Company was changed from ' Sunedison Infrastructure 
Limited' to "Refex Renewables & In frastructure Limited". 
3 With effect from 5th May 2022, the name of the Company was changed from ' SIL Rooftop Solar Power Private 
Limited' to "Refex Green Power Private Limited". Further with effect from I 0th May 2023, the name of the 
Company was changed from 'Refex Green Power Private Limited' lo "Refcx Green Power Limited". 



(Rs. Jn '000) 
b. Transaction with Related Parties 

For the year For the year 
Nature of the Transaction Name of Related Party ended March 31 , ended March 31, 

2023 2022 
Debentures Issued (Issue Price) Refex Green Power Limited - 26,570 
Debentures Redeemed (Redemption 
Price) Refex Green Pov,er Limited 1,899 2,975 
Interest Expense Rcfex Green Power Limited 79 1.190 
Payment for Fanner's Share* Lakshmamma Kasvanahalli Honnegowda 28,129 -
Operation & Maintenance Charges Refex Renewables & Infrastructure Limited 1.771 1.687 
Repairs & Maintenance Megarnic Electronics Private Limited - 53 
Reimbursement of Expenses Sherisha Technolgies Pvt Ltd 26 -
Reimbursement of Expenses Refex Green Power Limited - 438 
Loan Repaid Refex Green Power Limited 2.602 1,087 
Loan Borrowed Refex Green Power Limited 5,804 14.622 

c. Balance at Year end 

For the year For the year 
Nature of the Transaction Name of Related Pa11y ended March 31, ended March 31 , 

2023 2022 
Trade Payables Refex Renewables & Infrastructure Limited 145 138 
Trade Payables Mcgamic Electronics Private Limited - 26 
Payment for Fanner's Share* Lakshmamma Kasvanahalli Honnegowda 28,129 -
Loan Payable Refex Green Power Limited 3,201 -
Interest Payable Refex Green Power Limited 46 -

27. Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

The management has identified ce11ain enterprises which have provided goods and services to the company. and which 
qualify under the definition of 'Micro and Small Enterprises' as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act. 2006 ("the Act"). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises 
as at 3 1 st March 2023 and 3 1 st March 2022 have been made in the financial statements based on in formation avai lable 
with the Company and rel ied upon by the auditors. 

Particulars 

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as 
at the end o f the accounting year 
(i i) Interest due thereon remaining unpa id to any supplier 
as at the end of the accounting year 
(i ii) The amount of interest paid a long with the amounts 
o f the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day 
(iv) The amount o f interest due and payable fo r the year 
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid 
at the end of the accounting year 
(vi) The amount of fu11her interest due and payable even 
in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest 

~=~ ~ooV'R 1,i' as above ace actually pa id 

~ ; 
~ 1.1 ~ 

As at 
31-Mar-2023 

195 

(Rs. Jn '000) 
As at 

3 1-Mar-2022 

256 



(Rs. /11 '000) 
28. Fair Value Measurements 

A. Financial Instrument by Category 
Particulars As at 3 I March 2023 Fair value hie n1rchy 

Financial Assets 

Trade Rece ivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Loans 
Other Financial Assets 
TOT AL ASSETS 

Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings 
Trade Payable 
Other Financial Liabilities 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

Particulars 

Financial Assets 

Trade Receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Loans 
Other Financ ia l Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings 
Trade Payable 
Other Financ ia l Liabilities 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

Fair value hierarchy 

FVPL FVOCJ Amortised cost Level I Level ll Level Ill 

94.490 
2.239 

7,082 
1,03,81 I 

1, 17,927 

686 
28,357 

1,46,970 

As at 31 March 2022 Fair value hie nn-chy 
FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost Level I Level II Level Ill 

75,729 
145 

6.760 
82,634 

1.15,866 
1,098 

105 
1, 17,069 

Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. Derived from prices). 
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabil ities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 
Accordingly, these are classified as level 3 of fa ir value hierarchy. 

B. Financial risk management 

The Company business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, fore ign currency 
risks and credit risk. The Company's management has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the 
Company risk management framework. The management is responsible for developing and monitoring the 
Company risk management policies. The Company risk managernent policies are establ ished to identify and 
analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls, periodically rev iew 
the changes in market cond itions and reflect the changes in the policy accordingly. The key risks and mitigating 
actions are also placed before the Board of directors of the Company. 

isk 
is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a 
contractual obligations and arises principally from Company's trade rccciva 

1g amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure which 



Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equiva le nts 

Other financia l assets 

Trade receivables 

(Rs. /11 '000) 
Carrying amount 

As at As at 
3 1 March 2023 3 1 March2022 

94,490 75,729 

2,239 

7,082 
1,03,811 

145 

6,760 

82,634 

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. The Company 
have an outstanding trade receivable amounting to Rs. 94,490 from BESCOM as at 3 JS' Marcl1 2023. As per 
Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with BESCOM, Power Price is agreed at Rs.8.4/- per unit & invoice raised 
accordingly. BESCOM paid on ly Rs.4.36/- per unit against Rs.8.40/- per unit stating delay in the commissioning 
of the project by the Company. The Company has appealed to KERC for release of the balance Rs.4 .04/- per un it, 
for which KERC has ruled the Appeal in BESCOM 's favour. The Company has appealed to the Karnataka High 
Court. As per Supreme Court decision, the Company has withdrawn the case before High Court of Karnataka and 
has fi led the appeal before the APTEL New Delhi agai nst the KERC Order. The company pursuant to the 
directions issued by the Hon 'ble Appellate Tribunal of Electricity ("APTEL") vidc common order dated 
24. 1 1.2022 passed in Appeal No.182 of 2021 along with connected matters ("Common Order") approached the 
KERC Bengaluru. The KERC Bengaluru allowed the petition, order has passed by the KERC on 21 /03/2023. The 
delay is condoned in commissioning of Solar Power Projects by the petitioners and consequently tariff of Rs 8.40 
per un it is allowed as agreed in PPA. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
The Company held cash and cash equi valents with cred it worthy banks as at the reporting dates which has been 
measured on the 12-month expected loss basis. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions are 
evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low credit risk. 

ii. Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obl igation, associated with 
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company manages liquidity 
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facil ities and reserve borrowing facilities, by cont inuously 
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and match ing the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabil ities. 
The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding. Having regards to the nature of the business 
wherein the 
Company is able to generate fixed cash flows over a period of time and to optimize the cost of funding, the 
Company, from time to time, funds its long -term investment from short-term sources. The short-term borrowings 
can be roll forward or, if required, can be refinanced from long term borrowings. In addition, processes and 
policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. 

The table below prov ides deta ils regarding the contractual maturities of sign ificant financial liabi lities as at 31 
March 2023 & 31 March 2022. 

Particulars 

Borrowings 
Trade Payables 
Other Financial Liabilities 
Total 

Particulars 

les 
ial Liabilities 

Less than 
o ne year 

10,800 
686 

28,357 
39,843 

Less than 
one year 

10,800 
1,098 

105 
12 ,003 

As at 3 1 March 2023 

1-2 years 

10.800 

10,800 

2 years and 
above 

96,327 

96,327 

As at 31 March 2022 

1-2 years 

10,800 

I 0 ,800 

2 years and 
above 

94,266 

9 4 ,266 

Total 

1,17,927 
686 

28,357 
1,46,9 7 0 

Total 

1,15,866 
1.098 

105 
1, 17,069 



. 
(Rs. In '000) 

i ii. Foreign Currency Risk 
The Company's operations are largely within India and hence the exposure to fore ign currency risk 1s very 
minimal. 

29. Financial Ratios 
The Ratios for the years ended March 31,2023 and March 31,2022 are as fol lows: 

Denominator 
As at March 3 1, Va riance 

Partic ulars Nume rato r 
2023 2022 ( in %) 

a) Current ratio1 Current Asset Current Liability 2.43 6.33 (61.69) 
b) Debt-Eouitv ratio Tota l Liabilities (Debt) Shareholders Equity 0.88 0.72 22.98 
c) Debt service coverage ratio2 EBITDA Principa l + Interest 0.07 0.39 (82.40) 

d) Return on equitv ratio3 
Net Profit Shareholders Equity -24.4 1% 1.03% (2.481.04) 

e) Inventory turnover ratio Net Sales Averag_e Inventory NA NA NA 
f) Trade receivables turnover ratio Net Credit Sa les A veral!,e Trade Receivables 0.46 0.55 ( 17.47) 
g) Trade payables turnover ratio Net Credit Purchase Average Trade Payables NA NA NA 
h) Net caoital t11rnover ratio Turnover Working Ca1Jita l 0.68 0.58 16.75 
i) Net profit ratio 4 

Net Profit Turnover -52.93% 2.92% ( 1.915.06) 
j) Return on capital e rnployei EBIT Caoita l Employed -5.09% 0.52% ( 1.085.48) 

k) Return on investment 
Income generated Time Weighted Average 
from I nvestmcnt Investment NA NA NA 

Note:-

EBITDA - Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Deprec iation and Amortization 
EBIT - Earnings before Interest and Taxes 
Working Capital - Current Assets less Current Liabilities 
Capital Employed - Total Assets less Current Liabilities 
Shareholders Equity - Share capital plus Other Equity 

Explanation:-

I. The adverse impact in Current ratio is due to increase of trade payables and payable to farmer during the year. 
2. The adverse impact in Debt Service Coverage Ratio is due to decrease in profit during the year. 
3. The adverse impact in Return on equity is due to decrease in profit during the year. 
4. The adverse impact in Net profit ratio is due to rcduct ion of profit during the year. 
5. The adverse impact in Return on capita l employed is due to intercorporate loans borrowed during the year. 

30. Note on Payment for Farmer's Share 

a. As per Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with BESCOM, Power Price is agreed at Rs.8.4/- per unit & invoice 
raised accordingly. BESCOM paid only Rs.4.36/- per unit against Rs.8.40/- per unit stating delay in the 
commissioning of the project by the Company. The Company has appealed to KERC for re lease of the 
balance Rs.4.04/- per unit, for which KERC has ru led the Appeal in BESCOM's favour. The Company has 
appealed to the Karnataka High Court. As per Supreme Court decision, the Company has withdrawn the case 
before High Court of Karnataka and has filed the appea l before the APTEL New Delhi against the KERC 
Order. 

The company pursuant to the directions issued by the I lon·ble Appellate Tribunal of Electricity ("APTEL'') 
vide common order dated 24.11.2022 passed in Appea l No.182 of 2021 along with connected matters 
("Common Order") approached the KERC Benga luru. 

-

oV-R $~ he KERC Bengaluru a llowed the petition, the following order has passed by the KERC on 2 ".2023 · , C-o~ a) The petit ions are a llowed. 
0

e,D & C 
/-~- ';/ J b) The delay is condoned in commissioning o f Sola, Power _Projects by the pc 8* 
., >"' b consequently tan ff of Rs 8.40 per u111t 1s allowed as agreed m PPA. ojFRN:01~415s 2) 

-~ fQll \,":- -:;;- Chennai - 14 r: 
-~ ~ ~ - ~ w ~rer111,..,co"~~ 

-



c) The respondent ESCO Ms are directed not to levy liquated damages and if already levied the 
same shall be refunded to the Petitioner within two months. 

d) The Petitioners are entitled for interest at the rate of I 0% p.a. for differential tari ff for the 
period from the date of COD till date of payment. 

The Respondent ESCO Ms are directed to make payment with interest within 90 days from the date of this 
order fall ing which the Petitioner is entitled for Late Payment Surcharge from the date of defau lt ti ll 
real ization. 

After the Final Judgement is passed by KERC, 8 angaluru, the balance amount of Rs. 18.735 (46.37.496 units 
X 4.04) for the year 2022-23, Rs. 18,015 ( 44,59.280 units X 4.04) fo r the year 202 1-22, Rs. 17 ,439 ( 43. 16.650 
units X 4.04) for the year 2020-2 1, Rs. 18,279 ( 45,26,360 units X 4.04) for the year 2019-20, Rs.1 6.691 
(41,3 1,670 units X 4.04) for FY 2018- 19 and Rs.3,223 (7,97,800 units X 4.04) for FY 20 17-18 will be 
recoverable by the company as per the order. Also. the liquidated damages paid earlier of Rs.3,000 is also 
recoverable. The interest entitled on the differential tariff and liquidated damages recoverable wi ll be 
accounted on receipt basis. 

b. The total amount of Rs.28, 129 (Rs. 1.23 X 2,28,69,256 Un its) to be paid to the Parmer as per MOU from .l une 
20 17 ti ll March 2023, has been recognized in the Financial Statements in the current financial year, since the 
company is now certain to realize the amount from MESCOM owing to the KERC Order. This arnount wi ll 
be paid once the amount is realized from MESCOM. 

3 1. Segment Reporting 

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of generat ion and selling of power in India. Based on the information 
reported for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance, there are no reportable segments in 
accordance with the requirements of Ind ian Accounting Standard I 08-'Operating Segments'. notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules.2015. 

32. On March 24, 2021 , the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through a notification, amended Schedule Ill of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the amendments are applicable for financia l periods commencing from April 1, 202 1. The 
Company has evaluated the effect of the amendments on its financial statements and complied with the same. 

In order to s impli fy numerical data and enhance the clarity of our presentations, we have rounded figures to the nearest 
thousands as per the requ irement of Ind AS Schedule Ill Amendments. While this approach helps to make data easier 
to interpret, it can sometimes result in a total mismatch between individual figures and their sum when rounded . 

33. Additional regulatory information 
a) Details of benami property held 
No proceed ings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company under the Prohibition of Benam i Property 
Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Bena mi Transactions (Prohibit ion) Act, 1988 ( 45 of 1988)) 
and Rules made thereunder. 

b) Borrowing secured against current assets 
The Company has borrowing limits sanctioned from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current 
assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with banks and financia l institutions are in agreement 
with the books of accounts 

c) Wilful defaulte r 
The Company has not been declared wilfu l defaulter by any bank or financia l institution or government or any 
government authority. 

d) Relationship with struck off companies 
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 
1956. 



f) Utilisation o f borrowed funds and sha re pre mium 
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested fu nds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including fo reign 
entities (I ntermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behal f of the ultimate beneficiaries 

The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 0 11 

behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf o f the ultimate beneficiaries 

g) Undisclosed income 
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 196 I. that has not been recorded in the books of account. 

h) Details o f crypto currency or virtual currency 
The Company has not traded or invested in erypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year. 

i) Valuation o f property, plant and equipment, intangible asset and investment property 
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets 
or both during the current or previous year. 

j) O ther regulatory information Registration o f cha rges or satisfaction ·with Registrar of Compa nies 
There are no charges or sat isfact ion which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the 
statutory period. 

34. The Company has a process whereby periodically all long-term contracts are assessed for material fo reseeable losses. 
At the year-end, the company has reviewed all such contracts and confirmed that no provision is required to be created 
under any law/ accounting standard towards any foreseeable losses. 

35. Prev ious year's figures are regrouped / rearranged, where necessary, to confi rm to the current year's classification / 
disclosure. 

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements : 1-35 
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